
 
The Roxborough Water & Sanitation District and Plum Valley Heights Subdistrict of the Roxborough Water & Sanitation District Regular 
Board meeting will be held in the Community Room at the West Metro Fire Station #15 located at 6222 N Roxborough Park Rd, Littleton, CO  
80125. This meeting can also be accessed via video conference at ZOOM Meeting ID 874 5981 8759; Password: 694389 

          Date: Wednesday, October 19, 2022  
     Time 8:00 am 

Board of Directors        Term Expiration 
Dave Bane, President        5/2023 
Ken Maas, Vice President       5/2023 
Keith Lehmann, Secretary       5/2025 
Christine Thomas, Treasurer       5/2025 
John Kim, Assistant Secretary       5/2025 

 
I. Call to Order as the Roxborough Water And Sanitation District (RWSD) Board of Directors regular meeting 
II. Declaration of Quorum/Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest 
III. Public Comment on items not on Agenda 

 
IV. CONVENE AS THE BOARD OF THE PLUM VALLEY HEIGHTS (PVH) SUBDISTRICT OF THE RWSD BOARD 
V.  Consent Agenda 

a. Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the PVH Subdistrict which are contained in and are part of 
the Minutes of the Roxborough Water & Sanitation District Minutes for the Regular Meeting on September 
21, 2022.   

VI. Staff Reports 
a. General Manager’s Report 
b. Financial Reports 
 

       ADJOURN AS THE PVH SUBDISTRICT OF RWSD AND RECONVENE AS THE RWSD BOARD  
VII.   Consent Agenda 

a. Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the RWSD on July 20, 2020. 
b. Ratify Payrolls for September 30 and October 15, 2022 
c. Ratify Payments since September 21, 2022:  
d. Approve Payments of Claims:  
e. Approve Pay App #8 for the WTP HSP Serving DWSD in the amount of $142,118.89 
f. Approve Change Order #4 for Rampart Range Road Transmission Main Replacement to add $23,977.00 and 

2 days 
g. Approve Pay App #6 for the Rampart Range Road Transmission Main Replacement in the amount of 

$368,046.11 
h. Approve Pay App #2 for the Pump 201 Addition to Roxborough Lift Station in the amount of $24,738.00 

 
VIII.   Staff Reports 

a.     General Manager’s Report  
b      Legal Counsel Report  
c.      Operation Director’s Report 
d. Engineering Report/Water Use Graphs 
e. Financial Report 

 
IX. Action Items 

a. Public Hearing on Resolution 22-10-01 Regarding Opt Out of the FAMLI Program 

b. Consider Approval of Resolution 22-10-01 Opting Out of the FAMLI Program 

c. Set Budget Hearing for 2022 Budget  

d. Resolution 2021-10-01 Certifying Delinquent Accounts to Douglas County Treasurer 

e. Executive Session to discuss Personnel Matter 

 

X. Adjourn 



ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 

 

 

 

6222 N. Roxborough Park Rd.   Littleton, CO 80125  FAX (303) 933-3649 Phone (303) 979-7286 

www.roxwater.org 

 

 

General Manager’s Report 

Plum Valley Heights Subdistrict of Roxborough Water and Sanitation District 

October 19, 2022 

Valley View Christian Church: 

• We have agreed on an alignment for the water line to the Church and language for the easement 

from the Property Owners Association (POA).  

• Updated cost estimate for the new alignment is $1,205,000; engineer’s estimate to complete 

design and approvals for the water line is $149,000. The Church has been informed of the cost to 

complete the design and has made a $50,000 deposit. The Church will be notified when the 

balance is $10,000, and they have been told work on the design will stop if the balance drops 

below $5,000. 

 
Titan Road Industrial Park: 

• Submitted another round of comments on the plans for the cardominium project. Comments must 

be addressed and a Facilities Conveyance Agreement must be executed before the District will 

give final approval and sign-off on plans. 

 
McMakin Property: 
 

• Most recent development plan has been withdrawn. 
 
 















 
The Roxborough Water & Sanitation District and Plum Valley Heights Subdistrict of the Roxborough Water & Sanitation District Regular 
Board meeting will be held in the Community Room at the West Metro Fire Station #15 located at 6222 N Roxborough Park Rd, Littleton, CO  
80125. This meeting can also be accessed via video conference at ZOOM Meeting ID 874 5981 8759; Password: 694389 

          Date: Wednesday, October 19, 2022  
     Time 8:00 am 

Board of Directors        Term Expiration 
Dave Bane, President        5/2023 
Ken Maas, Vice President       5/2023 
Keith Lehmann, Secretary       5/2025 
Christine Thomas, Treasurer       5/2025 
John Kim, Assistant Secretary       5/2025 

 
I. Call to Order as the Roxborough Water And Sanitation District (RWSD) Board of Directors regular meeting 
II. Declaration of Quorum/Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest 
III. Public Comment on items not on Agenda 

 
IV. CONVENE AS THE BOARD OF THE PLUM VALLEY HEIGHTS (PVH) SUBDISTRICT OF THE RWSD BOARD 
V.  Consent Agenda 

a. Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the PVH Subdistrict which are contained in and are part of 
the Minutes of the Roxborough Water & Sanitation District Minutes for the Regular Meeting on September 
21, 2022.   

VI. Staff Reports 
a. General Manager’s Report 
b. Financial Reports 
 

       ADJOURN AS THE PVH SUBDISTRICT OF RWSD AND RECONVENE AS THE RWSD BOARD  
VII.   Consent Agenda 

a. Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the RWSD on July 20, 2020. 
b. Ratify Payrolls for September 30 and October 15, 2022 
c. Ratify Payments since September 21, 2022:  
d. Approve Payments of Claims:  
e. Approve Pay App #8 for the WTP HSP Serving DWSD in the amount of $142,118.89 
f. Approve Change Order #4 for Rampart Range Road Transmission Main Replacement to add $23,977.00 and 

2 days 
g. Approve Pay App #6 for the Rampart Range Road Transmission Main Replacement in the amount of 

$368,046.11 
h. Approve Pay App #2 for the Pump 201 Addition to Roxborough Lift Station in the amount of $24,738.00 

 
VIII.   Staff Reports 

a.     General Manager’s Report  
b      Legal Counsel Report  
c.      Operation Director’s Report 
d. Engineering Report/Water Use Graphs 
e. Financial Report 

 
IX. Action Items 

a. Public Hearing on Resolution 22-10-01 Regarding Opt Out of the FAMLI Program 

b. Consider Approval of Resolution 22-10-01 Opting Out of the FAMLI Program 

c. Set Budget Hearing for 2022 Budget  

d. Resolution 2021-10-01 Certifying Delinquent Accounts to Douglas County Treasurer 

e. Executive Session to discuss Personnel Matter 

 

X. Adjourn 

























ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 

 

 

 

2 

 

General Manager’s Report 

October 19, 2022 

Information Only 
 
Please watch for an e-mail with menu selections for you and your guest for the District’s Board/Staff 
Christmas Party in the Wine Grotto at the new Ravenna Clubhouse. 
 
Draft 2023 Budget: 

• The draft budget for 2023 is included in your meeting packet. We will have the annual public 
hearing on the budget at the November meeting. 

• The draft budget includes over $10M in capital improvements in 2023, which will be a 
significant workload for staff. 

• The 10-year capital improvement plan includes $12M in distribution system projects, $11M in 
sanitary sewer system projects, and $2.5M in treatment plant projects that could be financed 
through the state revolving loan fund if the current 2.0 debt service mill levy were extended 
through a bond election. 

• I will distribute a detailed analysis of the proposed budget for 2023 prior to the November 
public hearing. 

 
November Rate Hearing: 

• Centennial Water & Sanitation District has notified Roxborough WSD that the tap fee for new 
connections to the Subdistrict system served through Centennial will increase 12% effective 
January 1, 2023. The new System Development Charge for the Subdistrict to reflect this 
increase will be on the Board’s agenda in November. 

• In addition, the November Rate Hearing will consider adoption of the Drought/Water 
Availability Surcharges that will also go into effect January 1, 2023, due to Aurora’s declaration 
of a Stage I drought. 

Drought/Water Availability Surcharge 
January 2022 Surcharge/1,000 gallons 

 Usage (gal.)  Normal  Stage I  Stage II  Stage III 
 Tier 1 – 0-5,000  $ --  $ --  $ --  $ -- 
 Tier 2 – 5,001-10,000 $ --  $0.83  $2.48  $ 7.55 
 Tier 3 – 10,001-20,000 $ --  $0.84  $2.52  $ 7.68 
 Tier 4 – 20,001 + $ --  $1.16  $3.47  $10.56 
 

Past Due Accounts: 

• As of September 30, we had 12 accounts with a past due balance of $5,569, compared to 10 accounts 
with a past due balance of $6,301 as of August 31. 

• Eleven (11) accounts were flagged as past due on 10/4; service was shut-off at 3 residences and all 
were restored the same day after payment was received. 
 



ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 

 

 

 

3 

 

 
 
 
 
Dominion Water and Sanitation District/Sterling Ranch: 

• Day-to-day operations going well.  

• We continue to provide temporary service to Sterling Ranch Filing 4. Dominion is billed for the normal 
cost for water treatment, and Sterling Ranch CAB is billed $1.25/1,000 gallons to “wheel” the water 
through RWSD’s system. There are currently approximately 120 residences served through this 
temporary connection; the agreement allowed for up to 300 residences. Dominion is now indicating 
their yard piping and valves to serve this area from their system should be complete by November 30. I 
have indicated that Roxborough will allow the temporary connection to remain open provided there is 
no construction water use through the connection. If we see construction use that impacts RWSD’s 
ability to operate our system, the temporary connection will be closed and any pressure issues in 
Sterling Ranch will not be RWSD’s problem. In addition, if maintaining water levels in Roxborough’s 
system to provide adequate pressure to Sterling Ranch residences results in any water age issues, 
Sterling Ranch will be billed for any flushing at the Tier 5 rate of $13.75/1,000 gallons. 

• Per the Board’s instructions at the September Board meeting, Dominion has been informed that there 
will be no discussion of any new agreements or amendments to existing agreements until such time as 
the odor issues impacting RWSD residents from the Dominion system have been addressed 
satisfactorily. 

• There were an additional 51 Certificates of Occupancy (CO) issued in Sterling Ranch in September 
bringing the total number of COs that have been issued in Sterling Ranch to 1,715 for a monthly 
Wastewater Operations Charge of $34,300.  

• Year to date development summary: 
 

                   

              

             

                

       

             

                 

      

             

                 

      



ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 

 

 

 

4 

 

 
 

• The next $1M Capital Improvements fee is due from Dominion when they reach 2,000 EQRs. This will 
bring the total Capital Improvements paid to date to $3M of the $5M required under the Wastewater 
Conveyance Agreement. Dominion will be assessed 50% of the cost of the lift station pump 
replacement project against this fund as a wastewater capacity improvement. 

• Under the Purchase and Sale Agreement for the Wastewater Treatment Plant, RWSD tracks new 
building permits issued in Sterling Ranch. Dominion is invoiced $300 for each residential equivalent 
building permit in the prior year.  
 

 
 

Projects: 

• The addition of the new pump to serve Dominion’s high zone is essentially complete except for the 
permanent VFD. 

• Other projects at the water treatment plant have been delayed do to building permit issues. 



ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 

 

 

 

5 

 

• The Rampart Range Road Transmission Main Replacement Project is progressing slowly. Paving has gone 
much slower than we would have liked. 

o Once work in the northbound lanes is complete, work will shift to the southbound lanes to 
complete the tie ins to the west. There may be additional overnight work. 

o Traffic control plans for the next phases of work are under development with Douglas County. 
o We are currently evaluating ways to maintain access to the Shell station while work in the 

southbound lanes is completed. We will either need to adjust traffic control to allow access 
from Rampart Range Road or will need to make improvements to a gravel road behind the 
station that is owned by Douglas County. 

o The owner of the Shell station has asked the District to reimburse him for his payroll costs of 
$6,000/week while access to his business is limited. 

• We have had two very productive meetings with Aurora concerning relocation of the Rampart Pump 
Station. TST is completing some additional engineering evaluation to ensure the pump station will 
operate when the reservoir is offline. Once we confirm the site will work, we will commence 
negotiations with the Haberers for an easement. 

• In the next several weeks we will start lining sewer lines in Roxborough Park with the goal of lining the 
entire system over the coming years to extend its life and avoid the need to excavate and replace. 

 
Public Outreach/Opportunities: 

• We continue to do weekly updates on the transmission main replacement project on the website. 

• Two day per week watering limitations ended October 1. Below is the report on recent watering 
violations for the 2022 season.  

 

 































September Operations Report 

 

Water Plant 

 
The water treatment plant has been running smoothly.  In September, the plant was 
operational for 30 days with an average plant production of 1.9 MGD and a max day of 2.5 
MGD.  We had a cable break in the east sludge reclaim basin so we are treating the built-up 
sludge in that basin so we can get in the basin and have it repaired. 
 
The original High Zone Pump contract remains the same.  We are still awaiting the arrival of the 
permanent VFD and there are a couple punch list items left.  The VFD has been pushed out until 
mid-October now. 
 
The bathroom and office change order has not progressed much since last month.  We are still 
waiting for the fire inspectors’ comments to be addressed. 
 
The Sodium Hypochlorite generator is installed and in service. 
 
Backwash Pond Phase 2 has begun, the fire hydrant and associated water line has been 
installed, tested, and put into service.  Sludge waste line has also been installed, tested, and is 
ready to be put into service. 
 
We are still waiting on the Douglas County building permit to receive the electrical permit to 
start the south entry gate project. 
 
September production was 56 million gallons of treated water, 14.7 million gallons of that was 
for Sterling Ranch. 
 

Lift Stations 

 
The lift stations are running smoothly.   
 
The new pump has been installed and started up and the new harmonic filter has been 
commissioned.  Outstanding items include some drywall repair from crane modifications and 
painting of the new pipe. 
 



September Operations Report 

 
September saw 21 million gallons of sewage pumped to Littleton-Englewood.  Approximately 
3.7 million was conveyed for Sterling Ranch. 
 

Field 

 
The field had 176 locates for the month of September.   
 
Our endpoint replacement continues to keep the field guys busy; they replaced just over 725 
endpoints to date.  We will continue to push to complete prior to the CDMA contract ending 
after this year. 
 
The new transmission main is complete, paving of the north bound lanes is in progress.  Traffic 
swap is scheduled to occur in the upcoming week.  Once traffic is swapped American West will 
install the 4 lateral lines to tie the rest of the system into the project. 



September Operations Report 

 

Monthly Averages 



 

 

5655 S. Yosemite St.  |  Suite 101  |  Greenwood Village, Colorado 80111 

www.tstinfrastructure.com  |  T: 303.799.5197  |  F: 303.768.0441 

 

 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  Roxborough Water and Sanitation District 
  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: TST Infrastructure, LLC 
  Bill Goetz 

 
SUBJECT: Engineering Status Report 
 
DATE:  October 12, 2022 
 
 
I. DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS 

 
Berkeley Homes – Construction plans have been approved.  The geotechnical 
report has been received and reviewed.  Certain modifications to the plans will be 
required based on the geotechnical report.  The required easements have not yet 
been submitted by the developer.  Construction of water and sewer lines is not 
expected to begin until late 2022 or early 2023 pending relocation of overhead 
electric lines. (No Change) 
 
Valley View Church – The District and VVC have reached agreement on pipeline 
alignment and easement language.  TST has provided estimated design costs for 
the project.  Design work will begin after funding has been provided by VVC. 
 
Sherwin Williams Store – District staff and TST have met with the developer to 
discuss requirements for water and sewer.  Revised drawings have not been 
received.  (No Change) 
 
Titan Road Vehicle Storage (Luxury Cardominiums) – Revised plans have been 
received from the developer.   
 

II. RAMPART WATER LINE REPLACEMENT  
 
Installation of the 24” pipeline in Rampart Range Road has been completed and 
repaving of the trench and adjacent roadway is in progress.  Upon completion of 
paving, work will begin on four connections of the 24” pipeline to the existing 
distribution system, each of which requires a crossing of Rampart Range Road. 



 

 

 
 
 
Memorandum 
October 12, 2022 
Page 2  
 

 

5655 S. Yosemite St.  |  Suite 101  |  Greenwood Village, Colorado 80111 

www.tstinfrastructure.com  |  T: 303.799.5197  |  F: 303.768.0441 

 

 
III. RAMPART PUMP STATION RELOCATION 
 

A follow-up meeting was completed with Aurora to review operation of the Aurora 
system in more detail.  Subject to TST’s further review of the specific conditions 
discussed in the meeting, it appears that the proposed location for the new pump 
station may be feasible. 
 

IV. WTP HIGH ZONE PUMP FOR DWSD 
 

The new pump and piping have been installed and the pump is operational using 
the temporary VFD.  The most recent proposed shipping date for the permanent 
VFD is October 15, however the reliability of the proposed date is uncertain.  The 
pump is not currently in service pending completion of DWSD’s work on their 
system, which is not expected to occur until late November. 
 

V. WATER TREATMENT PLANT OVERFLOW POND (PHASE 2) 
 

Installation of yard piping continues. 
 

VI. LIFT STATION PUMP 201 REPLACEMENT 
 

The pump and electrical equipment are installed.  Startup of the pump is 
scheduled for October 12. 
 

VII. TRANSITION VAULT DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS 
 
A conceptual scope and design requirements have been developed and 
reviewed with District staff.  Preliminary design concepts have been developed 
based on the survey information. 

 
VIII. GIS 
 

The latest IT pipes data showing condition of existing sewer lines is being added 
to the GIS.  A new map showing fire hydrant radius was developed. 
 



 

 

 
 
 
Memorandum 
October 12, 2022 
Page 3  
 

 

5655 S. Yosemite St.  |  Suite 101  |  Greenwood Village, Colorado 80111 

www.tstinfrastructure.com  |  T: 303.799.5197  |  F: 303.768.0441 

 

IX. DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM ISOLATION VALVES 
 

Materials have been ordered and verification of the materials received is in 
progress. Planning of installation sequence is in progress. 

 
X. SEWER LINING PROJECT 
 

The GIS map is being updated to indicate the status of sewer lining. 
  
XI. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
 

The Capital Improvement Plan has been updated and the information is available 
for inclusion in the 2023 Budget. 
 
 



RWSD Monthly Water Use Graphs 2022  10/12/2022 Rev'd

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

T
R

E
A

T
E

D
 W

A
T

E
R

 P
R

O
D

U
C

T
IO

N
 (

M
G

A
L

)
ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT

TREATED WATER PRODUCTION 
2020-2022

2020 2021 2022

WATERING RESTRICTIONS
May 1 - October 1 Annually

New Lawn Permits
Issued Annually

May-Sept

No Lawn Watering
(Only Trees and Shrubs) 

Begin Watering                      
2 times/week 
with 3 groups



RWSD Monthly Water Use Graphs 2022  10/12/2022 Rev'd

0.0

2.0

4.0

6.0

8.0

10.0

12.0

14.0

16.0

18.0

20.0

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

C
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e
 P

re
c
ip

 (
in

.)
  
 

ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT
CUMULATIVE PRECIPITATION 

2020-2022

2020 2021 2022 5-Year Average (2017-2021)

YEAR TO DATE
Precipitation Totals 

Sept 2020:      8.30"
Sept 2021:    16.79"
Sept 2022:    12.95"

Sept 5-Year Average 13.22"



RWSD Monthly Water Use Graphs 2022  10/12/2022 Rev'd

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

P
re

c
ip

 (
in

.)
  
 

ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT
PRECIPITATION 

2019-2022

2020 2021 2022 5-Year Average (2017-2021)

Annual Precipitation Totals

2020: 11.83"
2021: 17.16"

YTD 2022: 12.95"

5-Year Average: 15.58"
Min. Precip/Year : 10.68" (1956)
Max. Precip/ Year: 32.07" (2015) 



RWSD Monthly Water Use Graphs 2022  10/12/2022 Rev'd

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

D
E

M
A

N
D

 P
E

R
 E

Q
R

  
(G

P
D

/E
Q

R
)

ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT
AVERAGE DEMAND PER EQR

2020 2021 2022 Average (2017-2021)

Hydrant Flushing  

Ravenna Pipeline for Pond         

Tank Cleaning



RWSD Monthly Water Use Graphs 2022  10/12/2022 Rev'd

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

D
E

M
A

N
D

 P
E

R
 E

Q
R

 -
(G

P
D

/E
Q

R
)

ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT
MAX DAY DEMAND PER EQR

2020 2021 2022

Hydrant Flushing  

Ravenna Pipeline for Pond              

Tank Cleaning

High Demand Day 

and long pump run 

times

Zone 4 Flushing for 

Water Quality Issues

High Temps with

Low Precipitation

Winter Schedule

and topping off 

tanks

Two water main breaks in 

the same day



RWSD Monthly Water Use Graphs 2022  10/12/2022 Rev'd

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

D
E

M
A

N
D

 P
E

R
 E

Q
R

  
(G

P
D

/E
Q

R
)

ROXBOROUGH NW DOUGLAS COUNTY
AVERAGE DEMAND PER EQR

2020 2021 2022 Average (2018-2021)



RWSD Monthly Water Use Graphs 2022  10/12/2022 Rev'd

0

1

2

3

4

5

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

T
R

E
A

T
E

D
 W

A
T

E
R

 P
R

O
D

U
C

T
IO

N
 (

M
G

A
L

)
ROXBOROUGH NW DOUGLAS COUNTY

TREATED WATER PRODUCTION 
2020-2022

2020 2021 2022

WATERING RESTRICTIONS
May 1 - October 1 Annually

No Lawn Watering
(Only Trees and Shrubs) 

























































 
The Roxborough Water & Sanitation District and Plum Valley Heights Subdistrict of the Roxborough Water & Sanitation District Regular 
Board meeting will be held in the Community Room at the West Metro Fire Station #15 located at 6222 N Roxborough Park Rd, Littleton, CO  
80125. This meeting can also be accessed via video conference at ZOOM Meeting ID 874 5981 8759; Password: 694389 

          Date: Wednesday, October 19, 2022  
     Time 8:00 am 

Board of Directors        Term Expiration 
Dave Bane, President        5/2023 
Ken Maas, Vice President       5/2023 
Keith Lehmann, Secretary       5/2025 
Christine Thomas, Treasurer       5/2025 
John Kim, Assistant Secretary       5/2025 

 
I. Call to Order as the Roxborough Water And Sanitation District (RWSD) Board of Directors regular meeting 
II. Declaration of Quorum/Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest 
III. Public Comment on items not on Agenda 

 
IV. CONVENE AS THE BOARD OF THE PLUM VALLEY HEIGHTS (PVH) SUBDISTRICT OF THE RWSD BOARD 
V.  Consent Agenda 

a. Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the PVH Subdistrict which are contained in and are part of 
the Minutes of the Roxborough Water & Sanitation District Minutes for the Regular Meeting on September 
21, 2022.   

VI. Staff Reports 
a. General Manager’s Report 
b. Financial Reports 
 

       ADJOURN AS THE PVH SUBDISTRICT OF RWSD AND RECONVENE AS THE RWSD BOARD  
VII.   Consent Agenda 

a. Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the RWSD on July 20, 2020. 
b. Ratify Payrolls for September 30 and October 15, 2022 
c. Ratify Payments since September 21, 2022:  
d. Approve Payments of Claims:  
e. Approve Pay App #8 for the WTP HSP Serving DWSD in the amount of $142,118.89 
f. Approve Change Order #4 for Rampart Range Road Transmission Main Replacement to add $23,977.00 and 

2 days 
g. Approve Pay App #6 for the Rampart Range Road Transmission Main Replacement in the amount of 

$368,046.11 
h. Approve Pay App #2 for the Pump 201 Addition to Roxborough Lift Station in the amount of $24,738.00 

 
VIII.   Staff Reports 

a.     General Manager’s Report  
b      Legal Counsel Report  
c.      Operation Director’s Report 
d. Engineering Report/Water Use Graphs 
e. Financial Report 

 
IX. Action Items 

a. Public Hearing on Resolution 22-10-01 Regarding Opt Out of the FAMLI Program 

b. Consider Approval of Resolution 22-10-01 Opting Out of the FAMLI Program 

c. Set Budget Hearing for 2022 Budget  

d. Resolution 2021-10-01 Certifying Delinquent Accounts to Douglas County Treasurer 

e. Executive Session to discuss Personnel Matter 

 

X. Adjourn 



 

 

1 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-10-01 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF  

ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 

 

RESOLUTION DECLINING PARTICIPATION IN THE COLORADO PAID FAMILY AND 

MEDICAL LEAVE INSURANCE PROGRAM 

 

WHEREAS, Roxborough Water and Sanitation District (the “District”) was organized 

pursuant to the Special District Act, Article 1 of Title 32, C.R.S., after approval of the eligible 

electors of the District, by order of the District Court in and for Douglas County, Colorado; and 

 

WHEREAS, in November of 2020, Colorado voters approved Proposition 118, codified at 

Part 5, Article 13.3 of Title 8, C.R.S., establishing a state insurance plan providing paid leave for 

Colorado workers during certain life circumstances to be known as the Family and Medical Leave 

Insurance Program (“FAMLI”); and 

 

WHEREAS, under FAMLI, employers and their employees are both responsible for 

funding the program and may split the cost 50/50, with the premiums set at 0.9% of the employee’s 

wage and 0.45% each paid by the employer and employee; and 

 

WHEREAS, the premiums required for FAMLI will be collected starting January 1, 2023, 

and benefits will begin January 1, 2024; and 

 

WHEREAS, the District, as a local government pursuant to C.R.S. §§ 8-13.3-503(14) and 

29-1-304.5(3)(b), may decline to participate in FAMLI following a public hearing and vote of 

its Board of Directors (the “Board”) pursuant to C.R.S. § 8-13.3-522; and  

 

WHEREAS, should the District decline to participate in FAMLI, its employees will still 

have the option to participate in the program and remit premiums to the State; and 

 

WHEREAS, notice of the October 19, 2022 meeting of the Board and the public hearing 

on the decision of whether to participate in FAMLI was duly provided; and 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the regulations adopted by the Colorado Department of 

Labor and Employment and codified at 7 CCR 1107-2 (the “Regulations”), advance written notice 

was provided to District employees including information regarding the vote process and 

opportunity to submit comments to the Board; and  

 

WHEREAS, at a public meeting held on October 19, 2022, the Board held a public hearing 

on the decision of whether to participate in FAMLI; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Board recognizes that employees of the District receive benefits similar 

to those provided by FAMLI.  



 

 

 

2 

 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.  The Board finds and determines that, with regard to the public hearing on the 

decision of whether to participate in FAMLI, notice was duly given, and the public hearing was 

conducted in accordance with the Regulations. 

 

Section 2. By [unanimous] vote, the Board hereby declines any and all participation in 

FAMLI.  

 

Section 3. The Board authorizes and directs its legal counsel to file a copy of this Resolution 

with the FAMLI Division by January 1, 2023 and to take all actions necessary and appropriate to 

effectuate this Resolution and the decision of the Board to decline any and all participation in 

FAMLI. 

 

Section 4.  The Board directs its staff to bring the matter of revisiting the decision to decline 

participation in FAMLI before a future Board by no later than eight years from the date of this 

Resolution.  

 

 

 

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.]  



 

 

 

3 

 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED THE 19th day of OCTOBER 2022. 

 

 

 

ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION 

DISTRICT 

 

 

By: ____________________________________ 

 Dave Bane, President 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-10-01 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF  

ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 

 

A RESOLUTION CERTIFYING DELINQUENT CHARGES PURSUANT TO SECTION 32-1-

1101(1)(e), C.R.S. 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 32-1-1001(1)(j)(I), C.R.S., Roxborough Water and 

Sanitation District (the “District”) is authorized to assess fees, rates, tolls, penalties, or charges 

(collectively, “fees”) for services, programs or facilities furnished by the District, and until paid, 

such fees constitute a perpetual lien on and against the property served, which lien may be 

foreclosed in the same manner as provided by the laws of this state for the foreclosure of 

mechanics’ liens; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 32-1-1006(1)(h), C.R.S., the District is also authorized 

to assess availability of service or facility charges when water, sewer, or both water and sewer 

lines are installed and ready for connection within one hundred feet of any property line of the 

residential lot or residential lot equivalent to be assessed, but to one or both of which line or lines 

the particular lot or lot equivalent to be assessed is not connected; and 

 

WHEREAS, the District imposes water and sewer service charges, availability of service 

charges, and system development charges on property located within its boundaries, and 

additionally imposes fees to include certain properties into the District for purposes of providing 

water service to said properties; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Section 32-1-1101(1)(e), C.R.S. authorizes the District’s Board of Directors 

(the “Board”), in addition to any other means provided by law, to elect, by resolution, at a public 

meeting held after receipt of notice by the affected parties, including the property owner, to have 

certain delinquent fees, rates, tolls, penalties, charges, or assessments made or levied solely for 

water, sewer, or water and sewer services, certified to the Jefferson and/or Douglas County 

Treasurer (the “County Treasurer”) to be collected and paid over by the County Treasurer in the 

same manner as taxes are authorized to be collected and paid; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 32-1-1101(1)(e), C.R.S. further provides that any such fee, rate, 

toll, penalty, charge, or assessment to be certified to the County Treasurer shall total at least one 

hundred fifty dollars ($150.00) per account and shall be at least six (6) months delinquent; and 

 

WHEREAS, on September 29, 2022, the District sent, by certified U.S. Mail return 

receipt requested and First-Class U.S. Mail, a Notice of Public Meeting to Certify Delinquent 

Fees to the affected parties, indicating the District’s intent to certify the delinquent fees at the 

Board’s regular meeting scheduled for October 19, 2022, at 8:00 a.m.; and  

 



 

2 

 

WHEREAS, the Board has reviewed the delinquent accounts listed in Exhibit A attached 

hereto and incorporated herein by reference, and desires to adopt this Resolution to certify the 

delinquent fees listed therein to the County Treasurer for collection. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1. The Board hereby elects to certify the delinquent fees listed in Exhibit A to the 

County Treasurer to be collected and paid over by the County Treasurer in the same manner as 

taxes are authorized to be collected and paid over pursuant to Section 39-10-107, C.R.S.  The 

amount of this certification does not include the County Treasurer’s collection fee, 

penalties, or other applicable fees.   

 

2. Until paid, the certification of delinquent fees set forth in Exhibit A shall 

constitute a lien on and against the applicable property served, which lien may be foreclosed in 

the same manner as provided by the laws of this state for the foreclosure of mechanics’ liens. 

 

3. The Board hereby authorizes and directs District staff and legal counsel to take all 

necessary steps to effect the certification of the delinquent fees listed in Exhibit A.  In the event 

an account is paid in full to the District prior to submission of the certified delinquent fees to the 

County Treasurer, the Board authorizes District legal counsel to remove the delinquent account 

from the list set forth in Exhibit A. 

 

4. This Resolution shall take effect on the date and at the time of its adoption and 

shall be recorded in the Douglas and Jefferson County Clerk and Recorder’s Offices, as 

applicable, against the affected property listed in Exhibit A.  Upon receipt of payment by the 

District of any delinquent fees listed in Exhibit A, District legal counsel is authorized to execute 

and record a “Release of Lien” against the applicable property for which payment was received. 

 

 

 

 

(Remainder of Page Left Intentionally Blank.) 

 



 

3 

 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED THIS 19th   DAY OF OCTOBER, 2022. 

 

 

ROXBOROUGH WATER & SANITATION  

DISTRICT 

 

 

      

By:    Dave Bane    

Its:     President    

               

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 



 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

LIST OF ACCOUNTS TO BE CERTIFIED TO DOUGLAS COUNTY TREASURER 

BY ROXBOROUGH WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 

 

LIST IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE 

 

County 

Account 

Number 

State Parcel 

Number 
Property Owner Property Address 

Amount 

Certified 

R0423219 2355-013-01-009 
JOSEPH F CROWLEY & 

MELISSA S CROWLEY  

7420 BISON PL 

LITTLETON, CO 80125 
$392.84  

R0422908 2355-013-04-028 

 

SCOTT PARKER & 

GAYLYNN MARQUES 

PARKER 

 

7442 BUFFALO CT 

LITTLETON, CO 80125 
$2,258.27 

R0613769 2355-022-02-021 

 

7893 RAPHAEL LANE LLC 

 

7893 RAPHAEL LN 

LITTLETON, CO 80125 
$1,576.91 

R0358954 2355-112-10-027 PA 9 LLC 

PROJECT AREA 9, 

ROXBOROUGH DOWNS, 

LITTLETON, CO 

$1,886.49 

 

 

 

 

 

  


	Agenda October 19, 2022_FINAL 10.13.2022
	PVH GM Report_10.19.2022
	PVH 2023 Draft2 10.11.2022
	PVH August Financial Recap
	Agenda October 19, 2022_FINAL 10.13.2022
	WTP HSP Pay App 8
	RR TMain Change Order 4
	RR TMain Pay App 6
	LS P201 Pay App 2
	RWSD GM Report_10.19.2022_FINAL 10.13.2022
	RWSD 2023 Draft3_10.13.2022
	September2022
	RWSD Oct22 Status Report
	RWSD Oct22 Water Graphs
	RWSD August Financial Recap
	August Financial Statements
	Agenda October 19, 2022_FINAL 10.13.2022
	(Bd Packet) RWSD Reso Opting Out of FAMLI_10-19-2022
	(Bd Packet) Reso re Delinquent Acct 2022-10-01



